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Public schools of this State are governed by boards of trustees. Op. S.C. Atty.
Gen., March 13, 1996 [noting that S.C. Code Ann. §59-19-10 bestows upon

school trustees the authority for the “management and control” of each school
district]. An opinion of this office dated February 16, 1983, further indicated
that “. . . the board of trustees of a school district is responsible for the
management and control of the district, subject only to the supervision and
orders of the county board of education if there is a county board. . . (and) . . .
has the power to make rules and regulations and to adopt policies.”

Alan Wilson
attorney General

We received your letter requesting an opinion of this Office concerning budget transfers within

Lexington-Richland School District Five’s (the “District’s”) operating budget after it has been
approved by the District’s board. Specifically, you ask “whether or not, South Carolina school

boards must approve mid-year budget transfers” and “if mid-year budget transfers may be done

without board approval, are there any limitations as to the type or amount ofbudget transfers which
can be made without approval?”

The South Carolina



As explained above, the Legislature vested authority over the management and control of school
districts with their boards of trustees and we believe this included the responsibility to create and

maintain its budget in accordance with section 6-1-80. Creating and maintaining a budget involves

and exercise ofdiscretionary authority. While we recognize the board may delegate administrative

and ministerial duties to the District employees, we have long recognized administrative bodies
cannot delegate their discretionary authority. See Op. Att’v Gen., 2005 WL 1024603 (S.C.A.G.

Apr. 14, 2005) (stating “discretionary authority generally may not be subdelegated without express
statutory authority.”); Op. Att’v Gen., 1985 WL 166051 (S.C.A.G. Aug. 8, 1985) (“Its is well

recognized that there must exist statutory authority for an administrative officer or agency to

subdelegate any portion of thethe



Conclusion

Some school districts have local laws pertaining to their budgetary authority and more specifically
when and how budget transfers may be authorized. We found no local law pertaining to the District
in this regard and therefore rely solely on the general law applicable to all districts to answer your
question. Article X, § 7(b) of the South Carolina Constitution requires school districts to create
annual budgets. Section 6-1-80 of the South Carolina Code specifies notice and a public hearing
are required for a school district to adopt a budget. The formalities required under 6-1-80 indicate
the Legislature’s intent for budgetary authority to rest with school boards, which are charged with
management and control of school districts. Because creating and maintaining a budget is a
discretionary function, we do not believe the District’s board, without authority from the
Legislature to the contrary, may delegate this function to District employees. As such, we do not
believe the District’s board can permit District employees to make budget transfers without the
approval of the board.

In your opinion request, you referred to a 2006 opinion in which we discussed the ability of a
county council to transfer funds from one county department to another after the adoption of the
county’s budget. Op. Att’y Gen., 2006 WL 1376908 (S.C.A.G. May 8, 2006). We cited section 4-
9-140 of the South Carolina Code, which in addition to requiring county councils to adopt
operating and capital budgets, specifically allows for budget transfers so long as they are approved
by the county council. Id. We determined this approval required must come in the form of an
ordinance adopted by the council. Id. While we did not find specific authority under state law
specifying school districts may make budget transfers so long as their board approve them, given
the responsibility of school districts to similarly adopt annual budgets and the fact that we believe
the
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Sincerely,

Cydncy^Milling
Assistant Attorney General


